()

CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Notice of a meeting of
Licensing Sub-Committee

Thursday, 4 April 2013
10.00 am
Pittville Room - Municipal Offices

MEMBERS ATTENDING OFFICERS ATTENDING

Councillor Garth Barnes Sarah Farooqi, Regulatory Solicitor
Councillor Diggory Seacome Manager
Councillor Jon Walklett

Phil Cooper, Licensing Officer

Reserve: Councillor Andrew Chard

Agenda
1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN
2. APOLOGIES
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
4. APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE (Pages 1 - 38)

Home Bargains, Unit 2, Golden Valley Retail Park,
Cheltenham.

Contact Officer: Rachael Sanderson, Democracy Assistant, 01242 264130
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4
Page 1

Cheltenham Borough Council
Licensing Sub Committee — 04 April 2013

Licensing Act 2003
Determination of application for a Premises Licence

Home Bargains
Unit 2, Golden Valley Retail Park,
Hatherley Lane, Cheltenham
Gloucestershire, GL51 6TA

Report of the Licensing Officer

1. Introduction

1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) allows applicants to apply for a premises licence or a
variation of an existing premises licence at any time. In this case, an application was
received on 07 February 2013 from T.J. Morris Limited, trading as Home Bargains, in
respect of Unit 2, Golden Valley Retail Park, Hatherley Lane, Cheltenham GL51 6TA.

1.2 A copy of the application form is included at Appendix A.

1.3  The applicant has applied for a premises licence for the following licensable activities at
the dates and times shown:
Sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises Every Day 08:00 — 22:00

1.4  If this application is approved a premises licence will be issued.

1.4 Implications

1.4.1 Financial Contact officer: Sarah Didcote

E-mail: sarah.dicote@cheltenham.gov.uk
Tel no: 01242 26 4125

Home Bargains

Page 1 of 12 Last updated 25 March 2013




1.4.2 Legal A sub committee is E&Q&i % discharge its duty and determine an
application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives. These
objectives, which are set out in section 4(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, are:
(a) the prevention of crime and disorder; (b) public safety; (c) the prevention
of public nuisance; and (d) the protection of children from harm.

In relation to crime and disorder the purpose of the licence is to regulate
behaviour on and access to premises where this relates to the licensable
activities and the licensing objectives. Licence conditions do not need to
replicable offences that are set out in the Licensing Act 2003 or other
legislation.

In relation to the protection of children from harm this includes protecting
children from the harms associated with alcohol. The sale of alcohol to
children is regulated by other legislation.

The Council also has a duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act
to excercise its functions in a reasonable way to prevent crime and disorder
however this duty must be exercised in a way that promotes the licensing
objectives.

Sarah Farooqi
E-mail: Sarah.Farooqi@tewkesbury.gov.uk
Tel no: 01684 272693

2. Application (Ref. 13/00202/PRMA)

2.1 Applicant: T.J. Morris Limited T/A Home Bargains

2.2 Agent: DWF LLP, 5 St Paul's Square, Old Hall Street, Liverpool, L3 9AE

2.3 Premises: Unit 2, Golden Valley Retail Park, Hatherley Lane, Cheltenham GL51 6TA

2.4  As part of the application, the applicants have stated that they intend to take the following
steps to promote the licensing objectives:

2.4.1 The prevention of crime and disorder
CCTV will be installed and images retained for a minimum of 28 days for prosecution
purposes. The premises will operate a ‘Challenge 25’ policy so that any person attempting
to purchase alcohol who does not appear to be at least 25 years of age will be required to
prove that they are aged at least 18. Staff will undergo training concerning knowledge of
licensing law and social impact of the sale of alcohol.

2.4.2 Public safety
The premises will comply with legal requirements for fire safety and health and safety,
including periodic risk assessments.

2.4.3 The prevention of public nuisance
Alcohol will be sold for consumption off the premises only. There will be no form of
entertainment on the premises. No outdoor areas will be utilised for the benefit of members
of the public. The premises operate within the required litter/refuse regulations. The
management policy at the premises is to welcome communication with any local persons in
relation to the prevention of public nuisance or any other licensing objectives.

2.4.4 The protection of children from harm

Home Bargains

Page 2 of 12 Last updated 25 March 2013




2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

3.1.1

The premises will operate a ‘ChalleEg%ggﬁpolicy so that any person attempting to
purchase alcohol who does not appear to be at least 25 years of age will be required to
prove that they are aged at least 18. Acceptable forms of identification are a 10-year
passport, PASS logo proof of age card or photocard driving licence. The company will
operate a due diligence policy incorporating the Challenge 25 policy, full training for staff
and the operation of a refusal record. There will be prominent signage located throughout
the store confirming the legal minimum age for the purchase of alcohol and other age
restricted products.

A copy of the application form is included at Appendix A. Steps to promote the licensing
objectives are included in the operating schedule on page 13 of the application form.

An internal layout plan of the premises is at Appendix B of this report.

A location plan of the premises is at Appendix C of this report.

Responsible Authorities

Gloucestershire Constabulary

The Constabulary has objected to the application on the grounds of:
e The protection of children from harm

e The prevention of crime and disorder

The Constabulary’s representation is as follows:

This application relates to a new Home Bargains store situated adjacent to B & Q at the newly
developed Golden Valley Retail Park, Cheltenham. The Constabulary’s objection to the grant of
an alcohol licence is made on the grounds of:

. The protection of children from harm

. The prevention of crime and disorder

GROUNDS FOR OBJECTION

Alcohol is an age-restricted product with serious or even fatal consequences for any child or
teenager who consumes an excessive amount. In addition to the risks it poses for the
youngsters who consume the alcohol, it fuels anti-social behaviour and crime in the community.
As with cigarettes, knives, and other age-restricted products there is a fundamental need for this
product to be controlled to a much higher degree than normal everyday items, so that under-age
children do not have easy access to alcohol.

Gloucestershire Trading Standards and the Constabulary have carried out a huge amount of
work in Cheltenham (especially Test Purchasing) over the past few years to try and reduce the
accessibility of alcohol to children. Despite making considerable progress, Cheltenham fares
very badly as far as ‘protection of children from harm’ is concerned. Alcohol-specific hospital
admissions for under 18’s in Cheltenham are “significantly worse than the national average” (see
Local Alcohol Profiles for England). Recent Test Purchase operations using 15-year old children
have also shown an unwelcome rise in the failure rate. In summary, there is still a huge amount
of progress to be made and there is no room for complacency in this area.

Store Layout & Crime Reduction Measures

Home Bargains intend to locate the main Alcohol display within sight of the main till, which is
helpful. The Constabulary has asked that any spirits (over 20% ABV) that are to be sold must
either be tagged with a Security Tag or, alternatively, displayed behind a counter where staff can
control access. These two conditions are regularly used throughout the County of
Gloucestershire to combat theft of spirits (which are a favoured item for shoplifters) and both
have proven to be effective methods of reducing the problem.

Home Bargains

Page 3 of 12 Last updated 25 March 2013




There is actually a counter at the Eegtg%lf} where cigarettes will be sold, however Home
Bargains have declined a condition “To display spirits only behind a counter” or “Not to sell
spirits.”

In these circumstances, the Constabulary takes the view that a Security Officer should be
employed to monitor suspicious individuals, known troublemakers or previous offenders.
However, Home Bargains have declined a condition to employ a Security Guard — even for a
limited period i.e. peak trading times/days. This, in effect, leaves the alcohol vulnerable to theft,
including theft by under-agers.

Drunken Customers

Alcohol is a product that also needs to be restricted when it is being sought by those who are
already drunk.

If drunken customers are refused service by staff, they will sometimes be tempted to steal the
product instead. Even if staff see thefts occur, there will be no Security Guard at the store to deal
with it, so the responsibility for dealing with the problem would shift entirely to the Police who
would have to try to identify, locate and arrest an offender after they had left the store. This is
usually a very lengthy and difficult process, compared with incidents where an offender has been
detained at the scene.

Theft

e Theft is a major problem in British society, and is the most frequent crime linked to the retail
sector.

e During 2011, there were 10,233 crimes in Cheltenham, of which 3,903 (38%) were Thefts of
various categories.

e Of these various Thefts 1,039 (26%) were Shoplifting. Additional categories of Theft that
take place in supermarkets include ‘Theft by employees’ and ‘Theft from the person’ (theft
of purses from shopping trolleys for example).

The Retail Sector, therefore, places enormous demands on the police. Each arrest consumes
approximately 7 hours of a Police Officer’s time, during which time they are unavailable for other
demands for policing in the local community.

Theft of Alcohol

Alcohol is one of the most-frequently-stolen items and it is often specifically targeted by thieves.
Unfortunately, stores and supermarkets often invite theft, by placing alcohol displays close to the
entrances/exits. This is regarded by the Constabulary as an irresponsible practice, as it not only
tempts shoplifters to steal, but affords shop-staff no realistic opportunity to intervene to prevent
the theft of such items. For this reason, the Constabulary is seeking a condition that alcohol shall
not be displayed within 5 metres of the entrance/exit. Without such a condition this store would
be at liberty to place a freestanding display just inside the entrance.

Home Bargains have indicated that they would accept such a condition.

Crime Reduction Measures
There are many measures that Licence Holders can take to reduce their Crime & Disorder levels,
thereby reducing demand on the Constabulary and minimising impact on the local community:

. The use of Uniformed Security Staff as a Crime Prevention measure in stores is hard to
overstate. Their ‘visible presence’ at a store entrance or overseeing Alcohol displays has a
positive deterrent effect for thieves. The role of Security Guards is particularly necessary in
supermarket-style stores, where shelving is so high that staff cannot easily monitor customers (as
in a small shop or Off-Licence). The presence of a Security Guard not only acts as a deterrent to
criminals who are intent on stealing goods, but also provides a degree of protection for staff and
customers. Their presence, allied with good observations, is the single most effective measure to
combat shoplifting and general disorder. Security Officers perform a specialised role and are the
main point-of-contact and providers of good quality evidence when involvement of the Police is
necessary.

Home Bargains

Page 4 of 12 Last updated 25 March 2013




A Security Guard enables vulnerable ro%gc?s QJ be monitored, enables suspicious activity to be
properly observed and allows offenders to be detained when necessary. It also means that
incidents of a minor nature can be dealt with ‘in-house’, without constantly calling on the Police to
assist. Most importantly, it enables stores to enforce a Ban against previous offenders. The
latter, if not implemented, permits repeat offenders to return to the store time-after-time.

Home Bargains have indicated that they are relying on shop staff to prevent thefts; however it is
the experience of the Constabulary that, whilst the presence of shop staff can act as a deterrent,
they are usually busy with other duties, so will not be observing the alcohol display or suspicious
customers. Moreover stores generally direct staff not to get involved in dealing with crime and
disorder issues, due to risks involved e.g. assault. The Constabulary has requested sight of the
company’s policy on staff directives, but has not yet seen it.

In essence, the presence of a Security Officer has a direct bearing on the level of Crime &
Disorder and on the demands being made on the Police, and they are the single most important
crime-reduction measure.

. ‘Tagging’ of Alcohol causes an alarm to sound if an individual attempts to leave the store
with Alcohol without first having the Tag removed/de-activated at the Checkout. This is an
effective measure that helps to reduce Theft by making it more difficult for goods to be stolen
unnoticed although, for practicality, tagging is often confined to Spirits (where large highly-
visibility tags are used) or the more valuable bottles of alcohol.

Home Bargains are not wishing to implement a Tagging system to protect their products.

During discussions, Home Bargains made a comparison with their existing store within
Gloucestershire (which is based at Merrywalks, Stroud) and pointed out that it does not
suffer significant crime & disorder problems. However, that store is situated within a
Shopping Mall that benefits from the constant presence of a Security Officer on every day
of the week. Without that Security presence the store would undoubtedly experience
higher levels of crime & disorder, as the Security Officers intercept and observe known
troublemakers and thieves. This strategy gives a high degree of protection to all the stores
within the Mall; as one also sees at other Malls such as the Regent’s Arcade, the
Beechwood Shopping Centre and the Brewery, where crime & disorder in individual units is
low.

The Mall in Stroud also benefits from participation in a local ‘Shopwatch’ which alerts the
Security Officers to undesirables and links directly to the Police Camera Room.

| have undertaken research regarding the Merrywalks Mall and can say that 108 incidents
are recorded for the period 1/1/12 — 4/3/13.

Home Bargains have also indicated that they are relying on their CCTV system to combat
crime. Whilst CCTV systems act as a deterrent to some extent, they are of limited value as
they simply record crimes that take place. It does not stop them occurring. Home Bargains
have indicated that, when a crime occurs, they would supply CCTV footage of the crime to
the Police. This places the onus and workload on the Constabulary to investigate a crime
after the offender has gone; a crime that is often preventable if adequate security and crime
prevention measures are in place in the first instance.

Supermarkets and discount stores compound Crime & Disorder problems in our
communities by engaging in a ‘price war’ over the sale of Alcohol. Alcohol is often
discounted to very low levels and is aggressively marketed, hence the Government
currently considering Minimum Pricing. The promotion of Alcohol in this manner is not
without it's consequences in the community.

Home Bargains

Page 5 of 12 Last updated 25 March 2013




The sale of alcohol is a significant pﬁ%gtﬁeGCore business for Home Bargains, and this
discount store is situated very close to ASDA where alcohol is sold at low prices. Home
Bargains is likely to compete with them on price. ASDA accepted a condition on their
licence for a Security Guard between 1100hrs and closing time, even though they also
have Tagging and CCTV. As a result, ASDA has low crime & disorder and makes very few
demands on the Constabulary’s resources.

CONCLUSION

It should be noted that the Licensing Act Objectives quite rightly place an emphasis on the
PREVENTION of crime and disorder. Without appropriate Conditions, the Grant of this
Application is likely, in the view of the Constabulary, to lead to unnecessarily high crime &
disorder, and a higher risk of harm to children.

Home Bargains have declined to accept a condition that they will employ a Security Guard
if the number of crimes exceeds four per month. They have also declined to give an
Undertaking for a Security Guard for the first 3 or 6 months of trading whilst an assessment
is made of the long-term need or otherwise.

Aside from reported crime, a Security Guard would also help the store reduce stock losses,
so is partially self-funding.

This application is, therefore, opposed by the Constabulary on the grounds related above.

In the event that the Committee grants this Licence, the Constabulary seeks the Conditions
below:

1. The Challenge 25 scheme shall be adopted.

2. The premises shall operate a system of till prompts to assist colleagues determining the
age of customers purchasing age-restricted products.

3. Alcohol shall only be displayed in direct line-of-sight of the main till.

4. Unless behind a sales counter, alcohol shall not be displayed within 5 metres of the main
entrance/exit.

5. A CCTV system consisting of at least 4 cameras shall be installed at the premises. At
least 1 camera shall cover the alcohol display and at least 1 camera shall cover the main
entrance to the premises. The CCTV system shall be maintained in good working order, shall
record at all times the premises are open, and recordings shall be kept for a minimum of 14
days and be provided on DVD to Officers of the Council, Trading Standards or Police on
request.

6. Spirits shall only be displayed behind the counter (or shall not be sold). (For the purpose
of this condition Spirits shall be defined as being an alcoholic product with an alcohol by
volume (ABV) percentage in excess of 20%)

OR

Security Tags shall be fitted to all spirits over 500ml.

7. A Security Guard shall be employed at the premises for a minimum of 20 hours per week.
The Committee is respectfully reminded that, under Section 17 of the Crime & Disorder Act, “it
shall be the duty of each authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely
effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to
prevent, crime and disorder in its area”.

[The Constabulary’s representation ends here]

Home Bargains

Page 6 of 12 Last updated 25 March 2013




Page 7

3.1.2 A full copy of the Constabulary’s representation, including a supporting statement from the

3.2

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

Acting Inspector, is at Appendix D.

Responsible Authorities
No representations have been received from any of the other responsible authorities.

Other People
No representations have been received from any other person.

Local Policy Considerations

The 2003 Act introduces a unified system of regulation through two new types of licences:
the premises licence and the personal licence (club premises certificates for qualifying
clubs). The Borough Council, as the licensing authority, is responsible for licensing all
outlets in the borough that sell or supply alcohol or carry out any other ‘licensable activities’
public entertainment, theatre, cinema, or late night refreshment.

The new system is underpinned by four objectives: i) the prevention of crime and disorder;
i) public safety; iii) the prevention of public nuisance; and, iv) the protection of children from
harm. The licensing authority must promote these objectives in carrying out its functions.

The Council's adopted licensing policy statement (Council 10" Feb 2012) includes the
following:

The Council will carry out its licensing functions under the Act with a view to promoting the
four licensing objectives, which are:-

(a) The prevention of crime and disorder;

(b) Public safety;

(c) The prevention of public nuisance; and

(d) The protection of children from harm. (Paragraph 4.1)

The aim of the licensing process is to regulate licensable activities so as to promote the
licensing objectives. (Paragraph 4.2)

In determining a licensing application, the overriding principle adopted by the Council will
be that each application is determined on its merits. Licence conditions will be tailored to
the individual application and only those appropriate to promote the licensing objectives will
be imposed. (Paragraph 4.3)

Each of the four objectives is of equal importance and will be considered in relation to
matters centred on the premises or within the control of the licensee and the effect which
the operation of that business has on the vicinity. (Paragraph 4.5)

Through their operating schedule, applicants will be expected, where necessary, to
demonstrate the positive steps taken to promote the licensing objectives. (Paragraph 5.3)

The operating schedule is a key document and, if prepared comprehensively, will form the
basis on which premises can be licensed without the need for additional extensive
conditions. The Council expects an operating schedule to indicate the steps that the
applicant proposes to take to promote the licensing objectives. (Paragraph 5.4)

Home Bargains

Page 7 of 12 Last updated 25 March 2013



5.10

5.1

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

The complexity and detail required inl?réggeéting schedule will depend upon the nature
and use of the premises. For premises such as a public house where public entertainment
is not provided, only a relatively simple document will be required. For a major public
entertainment venue it will be expected that issues such as public safety and crime and
disorder will be addressed in detail. (Paragraph 5.7)

The Council has discretion on whether to grant applications for licences and to impose
conditions on granting and reviewing licences, only when relevant representations are
made by “interested parties” or by “responsible authorities“(Paragraph 6.1)

The main purpose of this policy is to provide clarity to applicants, interested parties and
responsible authorities on how the Council will determine applications for the sale/supply of
alcohol, the provision of regulated entertainment and the provision of late night refreshment
and also to provide a basis for all licensing decisions taken by the Council over the next
three years. It will also inform elected Members of the parameters within which licensing
decisions can be made. (Paragraph1.3)

Through this policy the Council hopes that residents of and visitors to Cheltenham will be
able to enjoy their leisure time safely and without fear of violence, intimidation or disorder
while at licensed premises. (Paragraph1.4)

An effective licensing policy, alongside other initiatives, will work towards promoting the
positive aspects of deregulation under the Act, such as promoting tourism, increasing
leisure provision and encouraging the regeneration of the town centre as well as controlling
the negative impacts such as increase in noise, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and crime
and disorder. (Paragraph1.5)

It should be understood that this policy and the section 182 Guidance cannot anticipate
every scenario or set of circumstances that may arise and as such there may be
circumstances where the policy or guidance may be departed from in the interests of the
promotion of the licensing objectives and where it is deemed appropriate to do so. In such
cases the Council will give full reasons for departing from this policy. (Paragraph1.6)

The prevention of crime and disorder - The promotion of the licensing objective, to
prevent crime and disorder, places a responsibility on licence holders to become key
partners in promoting this objective. (Paragraph 5.11)

Applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and
sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented and maintained to reduce
or prevent crime and disorder on and in the vicinity of their premises, relevant to the
individual style and characteristics of their premises and events. (Paragraph 5.12)

When addressing the issue of crime and disorder, the applicant should demonstrate that
those factors that impact on crime and disorder have been considered. These factors may
include:-

(a) Underage drinking;

(b) Drunkenness on premises;

(c) Public drunkenness;

(d) Drugs;

(e) Violent behaviour; and

(f) Anti-social behaviour. (Paragraph 5.13)

In making their decision, regard should be given to the levels of crime and disorder in and
around the venue; the level of compliance with conditions on existing licences; and any
available evidence on crime and disorder issues. (Paragraph 5.14)

Annex D part 1 of the Secretary of State’s revised Guidance sets out matters that may be
relevant to the imposition of conditions relating to crime and disorder on licensed premises.
Where relevant representations are received the Council may impose appropriate

Home Bargains

Page 8 of 12 Last updated 25 March 2013



5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

conditions on premises licences and Eﬁggrtgnises certificates in accordance with this
guidance. (Paragraph 5.15)

Appropriate conditions include:-

(a) adoption of a ‘Challenge 21or Challenge 25’ policy;

(b) adoption of best practice guidance including our voluntary code of practice for Reducing
Alcohol Related Violence (RARV);

(c) agreeing a prescribed capacity for the premises;

(d) requirements for an appropriate ratio of tables and chairs to customers, based on
capacity, and for areas to be allocated permanently for seated customers in order to
prevent overcrowding, which can lead to disorder and violence;

(e) a requirement for Security Industry Authority registered door supervisors to control
numbers of persons entering the premises and to deny entry to individuals who appear
drunk, disorderly or intent on crime;

(f) requirements that drinking vessels be made of toughened glass or plastic or other
materials that do not form a sharp edge when broken, and that glass bottles are not passed
to customers. This may be a particular concern if drinks are to be consumed outside
premises;

(g) restrictions on drinking in areas within and outside the premises;

(h) limitations on the types of promotions of alcoholic drinks, so as not to encourage
excessive drinking, or drunkenness;

(i) the maintenance of good order by the management, particularly where alcohol is
supplied for consumption and where large numbers of people are admitted;

(j) dedicated communications networks between management teams, local police and other
licensed premises to provide early warning of disorder;

(k) warning signs about crime prevention measures;

() clear policies and measures to prevent weapons or illegal drugs being brought onto the
premises and measures to discourage the use of illegal drugs; and/or

(m) the installation and maintenance of appropriately sited closed circuit television cameras
(CCTV) to be operational during the period of the licence, and other appropriate times both
inside and immediately outside the premises which can provide images of a suitable quality
for use as

evidence. (Parapgraph 5.16)

Protection of children from harm - The Council needs to satisfy itself that there are
appropriate measures in place to protect children from harm. (Paragraph 5.32)

The Council will expect applicants, where necessary to consider the measures necessary
to promote the licensing objective of protecting children from harm when on the premises.
(Paragraph 5.33)

These measures may include staff training on how to control the entry of children and
young people under 18 and the vetting of staff who will supervise them. Applicants will have
to give particular regard to these measures in applications for licences involving:-

(a) the sale of alcohoal;

(b) children’s performances;

(c) attractions or performances likely to attract children. (Paragraph 5.34)

It is an offence to sell alcohol to children. In this context, children are defined as individuals
under 18. The provisions of the Act are that unaccompanied children under 16 should not
be on “premises being used exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol” (eg “alcohol
led” premises such as pubs, bars and nightclubs). In addition, it is an offence to allow
unaccompanied children under 16 on premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on
the premises after midnight but before 05:00. (Paragraph 5.35)

Issues for consideration include:-

(a) installing effective measures to check the age of those young people who appear under
21 to ensure that alcohol is not sold to those under 18 and those under 16 are
accompanied in alcohol led premises;

Home Bargains

Page 9 of 12 Last updated 25 March 2013



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

(b) the supply of alcohol for consfn%ga% lrpthe premises is the exclusive or primary
purpose of the services provided at the premises;

(d) accompanied children under 16 on the premises of which the primary purpose is supply
of alcohol for consumption on the premises are taking a table meal or are being entertained
by a live performance;

(e) the hour to which accompanied children under 16 are proposed to be on the premises
where the exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided at the premises is the
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises;

(f) due regard is paid to industry codes of good practice on the labelling and display of
alcoholic drinks;

(9) there are adequate procedures for identifying unaccompanied or lost children and
ensuring that they are kept safe and adequately supervised until they can be handed over
to a responsible adult;

(h) the likelihood of children being attracted to the premises; eg by the nature of activities or
facilities provided whether or not these are licensed;

(i) there is evidence of heavy, binge or underage drinking on the premises;

(j) the premises commonly provides entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature;
(k) there is a strong element of gambling on the premises;

() age restricted films are to be shown classified in accordance with the recommendations
of the British Board of Film Classification;

(m) the number of adults required for the supervision of children and the suitability and
vetting of those adults to ensure they pose no risk to children. Obtaining Enhanced
Disclosure from the Criminal Records Bureau may be appropriate in some cases.
(Paragraph 5.36)

National Guidance
Guidance has been issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Para 9.12 of the Guidance states: In their role as a responsible authority, the police are an
essential source of advice and information on the impact and potential impact of licensable
activities, particularly on the crime and disorder objective. The police have a key role in
managing the night-time economy and should have good working relationships with those
operating in their local area. The police should be the licensing authority’s main source of
advice on matters relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective,
but may also be able to make relevant representations with regards to the other licensing
objectives if they have evidence to support such representations. The licensing authority
should accept all reasonable and proportionate representations made by the police unless
the authority has evidence that to do so would not be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. However, it remains incumbent on the police to ensure that their
representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a hearing.

Para 10.10 of the Guidance states: “The 2003 Act provides that where an operating
schedule or club operating schedule has been submitted with an application and there have
been no relevant representations made by responsible authorities or any other person, the
licence or certificate must be granted subject only to such conditions as are consistent with
the schedule accompanying the application and any mandatory conditions required under
the 2003 Act.”

Para 10.12 of the Guidance states: “The licensing authority may not impose any conditions
unless its discretion has been engaged following receipt of relevant representations and it
is satisfied as a result of a hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that
it is appropriate to impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing
objectives.”

Proportionality: para 10.14 of the Guidance states: “The 2003 Act requires that licensing
conditions should be tailored to the size, type, location and characteristics and activities
taking place at the premises concerned. Conditions should be determined on a case-by-

Home Bargains

Page 10 of 12 Last updated 25 March 2013



6.6

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

case basis and standardised conditior@%@ht&nore these individual aspects should be
avoided.”

Duplication with other statutory provisions: para 10.16 of the Guidance states: “If other
existing law already places certain statutory responsibilities on an employer or operator of
premises, it cannot be appropriate to impose the same or similar duties as conditions.”

Licensing Comments

Members are to note that on 25 April 2012, the following amendments to the Licensing Act
2003 came into force:

The Licensing Authority became a Responsible Authority for premises and club premises
applications and will have the power to refuse, remove or review a licence without
representation from the Police or other Responsible Authority.

Primary Care Trusts and Local Health Boards also joined the list of Responsible Authorities
and are able to make representations regarding licensing applications and apply for
reviews, even though the licensing objectives have not been revised to include health.

The term 'interested parties' has been replaced by 'any other person' meaning that anyone
can voice objections regardless of geographic vicinity, however any such objection must
relate to one or more of the licensing objectives.

The Secretary of State has been required to make changes to the Licensing Act
Regulations 2005 requiring the Licensing Authority to advertise applications 'in a manner
which is prescribed and is likely to bring the application to the attention of the persons who
are likely to be affected by it".

The Committee must have regard to all of the representations made and the evidence it
hears. The Committee must take such of the following steps as it considers appropriate for
the promotion of the licensing objectives which can include:

e Granting the application as requested,;

e Modifying the conditions attached to the licence; or

¢ Rejecting all or part of the application.

Members must only take account of representations which are specific to the premises and
which relate specifically to this application for a premises licence for the sale of alcohol.
Representations which relate to issues not associated with the sale of alcohol and / or not
specific to these premises, should be disregarded.

In determining this application, Members must have regard to the guidance issued by the
Secretary of State and the Council’'s adopted policy statement.

The Council has a statutory duty to promote the licensing objectives and therefore
Members can only give consideration to representations that relate to the likely effect the
grant of this licence will have on the promotion of those objectives, these being:

a. the prevention of crime and disorder;

b. public safety;

c. the prevention of public nuisance; and

d. the protection of children from harm.

Members may impose such conditions as they consider appropriate for the promotion of
one or more of the licensing objectives.

Home Bargains

Page 11 of 12 Last updated 25 March 2013



192
.

Background Papers

Report Author

Dann
ServicdRecdrds

Contact officer: Mr Philip Cooper
E-mail: licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk
Tel no: 01242 775200

Home Bargains

Page 12 of 12

Last updated 25 March 2013




Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises cerlificates)Fae&g'ens‘IZQS - Schedule 2, regulation 10 Llcz

Insert name and address | o1 tenham Borough Council
of relevant licensing

authority and its | PO Box 12
reference number | Municipal Offices

{aptmal) Promenade
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire, GL50 1PP

GL50 1PP

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that
your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if hecessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

XWe T. J. Morris Limited t/a Home Bargains

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below (the premises) and X¥we are making this
application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section
12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 - Premises Details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
Home Bargains

Unit 2

Golden Valley Retail Park

Hatherley Lane

Post town Cheltenham Post code GL51 6SY

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £

Part 2 - Applicant Details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as
Please tick v/ Yes

a) an individual or individuals* |:| please complete section (A)

b) a person other than an individual*

i. as a limited company please complete section (B)

ii. as a partnership please complete section (B)

iii. as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B)

iv. other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B)

c) a recognised club please complete section (B)

d) a charity please complete section (B)

I I |

e) the proprietor of an educational establishment please complete section (B)

LIC2 © Crown copyright Page 1 of 15 Laserform International 12/10



Page 14

f) a health service body please complete section (B)

1O

g) a person who is registered under Part 2 of the please complete section (B)
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Wales

ga) a person who is registered under Chapter 2 |:| please complete section (B)
of Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act
2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an
independent hospital in England

h) the chief officer of police of a police force |:| please complete section (B)
in England and Wales

*If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm:
Please tick v* Yes

" | am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the I:’
premises for licensable activities; or

= | am making the application pursuant to a

o statutory function or D
o a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative D

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Mr [ Mrs [ ] Miss [ | Ms [ ] Other title

(for example, Rev)
Surname First names

Please tick  Yes

| am 18 years old or over I:'

Current postal
address

if different from
premises address

Post Town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

LIC2 Page 2 of 15



Page 15

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

Mr [:| Mrs D Miss D Ms D Other title |:|

(for example, Rev)
Surname First names

Please tick  Yes

I am 18 years old or over |:|

Current postal
address

if different from
premises address

Post Town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please give any registered
number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate), please give the name
and address of each party concerned

Name
T. J. Morris Limited t/a Home Bargains

Address

Axis Business Park
Portal Way
Gillmoss

Liverpool

L1l 0JAa

Registered number (where applicable)
1505036

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)
Limited Company

Telephone number (if any)
0151 530 2920

E-mail address (optional)

LIC2

Page 3 of 15



Page 16
Part 3 - Operating Schedule

Day Month  Year

When do you want the premises licence to start? Al S|A|P

Day Month  Year

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do N|/]A
you want it to end?

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time, please state the
number expected to attend.

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

These premises will trade selling general goods, food stuffs and household
products. This is a single storey unit located on a retail park development
with all staff and storage areas located at the rear of the unit. The unit has
an appoximate sales area of 803sgm (8643 sg. ft). The alcohol display will be
monitored by sales staff and by CCTV and will be situated in sight of the lead
till. The exits will be positioned after the tills. The layout of the store is
more particularly shown in the plan accompanying the application, the aisles
will have staff regularly operating in them to ensure stock levels are monitored
and to assist customers. The entrance aisle will be permanently manned to assist
customers. The store will operate between the hours listed in the application,
will have CCTV as described later with the staff fully trained.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedule 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Please tick  Yes

Provision of regulated entertainment

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)
e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

I/ .

h) anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of entertainment facilities:

i) making music (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

)] dancing (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

k) entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (i) or (j)
(if ticking yes, fill in box K)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box L)

=0 OOO

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box M)

In all cases complete boxes N, O and P

LIC2 Page 4 of 15



Page 17
A g

Plays Will the performance of a play take place indoors or Indoors

Standard days and timings outdoors or both - please tick v (please read guidance

(please read guidance note 6) | note 2) Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the performance
of plays at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

B

Films Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or Indoors

Standard days and timings outdoors or both - please tick « (please read guidance

(please read guidance note 6) | note 2) Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read guidance
note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the exhibition
of films at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

LIC2 Page 5 of 15



C

Page 18

Indoor sporting events
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 6)

Please give further details (please read guidance note 3)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please read guidance
note 4)

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for indoor sporting
events at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 5)

Fri

Sat

Sun

D

Boxing or wrestling Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take place Indoors

enfertainment indoors or outdoors or both - please tick v (please

Standard days and timings read guidance note 2) Outdoors

(please read guidance note 6)

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for boxing or
wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

LIC2

Page 6 of 15




E

Page 19

Live music Will the performance of live music take place indoors Indoors

Standard days and timings or outdoors or both - please tick v (please read

(please read guidance note 6) guidance note 2) Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the performance
of live music at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

F

Recorded music Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or| Indoors

Standard days and timings outdoors or both - please tick v (please read guidance

(please read guidance note 6) note 2) Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the playing of
recorded music_at different fimes to those listed in the column on the left
please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

LIC2

Page 7 of 15




G

Page 20

Performances of dance Will the performance of dance take place indoors or Indoors

Standard days and timings outdoors or both - please tick v (please read guidance

(please read guidance note 6) note 2) Qutdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please read guidance
note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the performance
of dance at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

H

Anything of a similar Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be providing
description to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g)
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 6)
Day Start Finish | Will this entertainment take place indoors or outdoors | |n400rs
or both - please tick v (please read guidance note 2)
Outdoors
Mon
Both
Tue Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Wed
Thur State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar description to that
falling within (e), (f) or (a) (please read guidance note 4)
Fri
Sat Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the entertainment
of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)
Sun

LIC2

Page 8 of 15



Page 21

Provision of facilities for
making music

Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 6)

Please give a description of the facilities for making music you will be providing

Will the facilities for making music be indoors or Indoors
outdoors or both - please tick v (please read guidance
note 2) Qutdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of facilities for making music
(please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for provision of
facilities for making music at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

J

Provision of facilities for
dancing

Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 6)

Will the facilities for dancing be indoors or outdoors Indoors
or both - please tick v (see guidance note 2) Buldoors
Both

Day Start Finish | Please give a description of the facilities for dancing you will be providing

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for providing dancing facilities (please read guidance
note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the provision of
facilities for dancing entertainment at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

LIC2

Page 9 of 15




K

Page 22

Provision of facilities for
entertainment of a
similar description to
that falling within | or J
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 6)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment facility you will be providing

Day Start Finish | Will the entertainment facility be indoors or outdoors Indoors
or both - please tick v (please read guidance note 2)
Outdoors
Mon
Both
Tue Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Wed
State any seasonal variations for the provision of facilities for entertainment of a
Thur similar description to that falling within | or J (please read guidance note 4)
Fri
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the provision of
Sat facilities for entertainment of a similar description to that falling within | or J at
different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
guidance note 5)
Sun

L

Late night refreshment
Standard days and timings

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place Indoors
indoors or outdoors or both - please tick v (please

(please read guidance note 6) read guidance note 2) Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night refreshment (please
read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the provision of
late night refreshment at different times, to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

LIC2

Page 10 of 15




LIC2

M

Page 23

Supply of alcohol
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 6)

Day Start Finish

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption On the premises

Please tick box) v lease read guidance note 7 .
( yvo B ' | off the premises v

Both

Mon 08.00 22. 00

Tue 08.00 22.00

Wed 08.00 22.00

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read guidance note 4)

Thur 08.00 22.00

Fri 08.00 22.00
Sat 08.00 22:.00
Sun 08.00 22.00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the supply of

alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list

(please read guidance note 5)
Please note that the applicant will fully comply with
Sunday trading hours.

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as premises supervisor

Name Andrew Paul Williams

Address

Postcode
Personal L

Issuing lice

Page 11 of 15




N

Page 24

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use
of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please read guidance nofe 8)

There are no such activities save for the sale of alcohol for consumption off
the premises and certain age restricted products. This is dealt with by staff
training to ensure that sales of the products are not made to children.

0]

Hours premises are
open to the public
Standard days and timings

(please read guidance note 6)

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 4}

Day Start Finish
Mon 08.00 22.00
Tue 08.00 22.00
Wed 08.00 22.00
Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open to the public
at different times from those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
Thur 3800 22 .00 read guidance note 5)
Please note that the applicant will fully comply with
Fri 08.00 22.00 Sunday trading hours.
Sat 08.00 22..00
Sun 08.00 22.00

LIC2

Page 12 of 15




Page 25

P Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d, e) (please read guidance note 9)

The subject premises will apply a standard of operation which will ensure
compliance with all four licensing objectives. based upon factors more
particularly outlined in Sections (b) to (e) below.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

The style of operation at these premises is designed to minimise crime and disorder, This will be
achieved by the use of CCTV with the retention of images for a minimum period of 28 days for
prosecution purposes. The premises seek a Premises Licence to sell alcohol for consumption off the
premises. These premises will operate as a minimum a 'Challenge 25' policy in order to ensure that
liquor is sold only to persons of lawful age (being that, should a person not look the age of 25 then
he/she would need to prove they are in fact of lawful age 18 or over). These issues also overlap on
the section dealing with protection of children from harm, A1l staff undergo training concerning
knowledge of Licensing Laws together with social impact of the sale of alcohol.

¢) Public safety

The premises will comply with current legal requirements for Fire Safety and
Health and Safety including periodic risk assessments.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

These premises are proposed to be registered for the consumption of liquor off the premises only. In
addition to there being no consumption on the premises, there is no form of entertainment on the
premises. There are no outdoor areas utilised for the benefit of members of the public and the nature
of the operation does not require the employment of door supervisors or use of dedicated cab firms.
The premises operate within the required litter/refuse regulations adopted by the Local Council. The
management policy at the premises is to welcome communication with any local persons in relation to
any issues which arise concerning the operation of these premises in relation to the prevention of
public nuisance or indeed any of the other licensing objectives.

e) The protection of children from harm

It is proposed that these premises will benefit from a Premises Licence for consumption off the premises
only. In order to ensure compliance with the legislation, the Company will operate a 'Challenge 25' policy
as a minimum whereby any person not looking the age of 25 must prove that they as a minimum are in fact
over the age of 18 te purchase alcohol. Acceptable forms of identification cencerning the issue of age are
a Ten Year Passport, PASS logo proof of age card or photocard Driving Licence All staff are trained to
familiarise themselves with these requirements,. The Company will operate a due diligence policy,
incorporating this minimum Challenge 25 policy, also incorporating full training for all staff, the
operation of a refusal record and refresher training on a regular basis. The store will operate a fully
recordable CCTV system which is overtly operable. There will be prominent signage located throughout the
store confirming the legal minimum age for the purchase of alcohol and other age restricted products and
the company policy.

LIC2

Page 13 of 15




Page 26

Please tick v Yes

= | have made or enclosed payment of the fee
» | have enclosed the plan of the premises

= | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others where
applicable

= | have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual | wish to be premises supervisor,
if applicable

s | understand that | must now advertise my application \f
= | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected \

[ B 8 [ | N

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD SCALE,
UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 4 - Signatures (please read guidance note 10)

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note 11).
If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature DWW Ly

Capacity Seolicitors for and on behalf of the Applicant

For joint applications signature of 2"'applicant or 2"applicant’s solicitor or other authorised
agent (please read guidance note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

OIGMBIIIG o rousurnsomsnsosiessssmosisssnsusshsss omssssssssanss 50345 A S A Y T BT P oe e eve s

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with
this application (please read guidance note 13)

DWEF LLP

5 5t. Paul's Square
Old Hall Street

Post town Liverpool Post code 13 9AFE

Telephone number (if any) 0151 907 3000

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional)

LIC2

Page 14 of 15



Prap fic. Db Fevidon

11/603 115

UNIT 2 GOLDEN VALLEY RETAIL PARK, Gagel FENHAM

-..w...w..x_,....;r:..»-w-.l\[ A
i g
) .

i

DXDAX
DAY

XXX

D

OO0
SIX

X

H
i}

X
X
QXXIXIXIX

XX
X

X
X}

DX
i

V
A

D

XXX
XXX

T
B

i
I = o e L - = =3
] E
l E b ] ferimed B -
I l-l.i.] o= . = - - =
{ l =3 = = = B = =
[ = g | |4 s 4
; | .2 Lt L .
2475 (78] 23017 201 X0 20(71] 2007 2200(r-1 2315 5]
= = = 5 = ) = = i
4]
LR hesilinns oo mee b 3 i
A ey e - . [ pct = _-‘J
k3
= . = . = . = L= -
- =2 |
g L
5 Ll bk - = = i
% F }_ o
i

=

WP &1 TR N e g A

FRONT ELEVATION]

LICENSING

resaise e COMYRSHT of Chartnal Froject Smsgmest
ot be vt fer oy o purpre whond i,

weeds fooy 1 drosdng. Al Gmormiow fo bo checsd by &l
} ond Exepenuisr poperied boeedoidy

T
i

#
£

Tl dreehep st b rosd b conjmction ot o ediacts,

it b nd Seckdls Soquiber o
Controct Adviolsiretore’ dremiegs, speciicaion and sy cowiract
oo

Too Cowtracter b $s prowids 4 Usihed Stetomant prlor to underteldeg
@y demnaliting Wets, toalion of epelage md opmlg W T

SYORE GUTLINE FOR UCENCE

FIRE [ATINGUISHIR G2

FRE BLANKET

L J@Jor ] |

(ecsristion

Chimeol Project Musageriont - Company Aoy Na, £280100
unit 15, Mavidian Susiness Vnge, Hanstsy Drlve, Hunes soss,
Uhtirpaod, L24 LG Tel C157 228 4200 - Fax 151 722 4202
Exmull glkipehurmwe-pr.ea,uk

UNIT 2 GOLDEN YeilY RETAIL PARK
CHELTERHAM

e PLANG A5 PROPOSED

LG {G EPPUCATION
e AN 2003 [seﬁe 11100 qumsz k1
P WILKINGOH e
aiued o
Proiaé it Fribaon

1608 115




Page 28



TTOZ FBERZOOOTHWT

Jaguumnp ¥s

E10T Y258 0T 8jeq
aaqInLEe)-qus upsuas SULIALLILUD Dy
BOTIR0 21GN Jusupedag
[rounog) ylnauog wEyuaEY) uopesiuebio
4 ajelg

Page 29

puabian

sdro

V19 LG9 weyusaysy) ‘sue
AspsyieH “lied |iejey As|eA

uap|o9 ‘Z Nun ‘surebleg aWoH ‘

HTOSSUGUTYOS-SORD MMMICOTY - JBUBTS ICH-LY) O] sUainfeg so2] Sursn peanpold
‘siumpasaoid prn 20 vonnasscud o} pesy Aew pue ESukdon weouD seEuup UoERN poICEY peSsLUIoINEWN

V.L9 1ST9 wequayay)) ‘aue Aaipey “Yaed [1e)ay L2[[eA uap[on) “z jun
sulesieg JWOoH



This page is intentionally left blank
Page 30



LICENSING ACT 2003
REPRESENTATION FORM — Responsible Authorities

Responsible Authorities are requested, where possible, to forward to the Licensing Authority all
relevant evidence in support of their representation at the time of submitting this form.

Your Details

Your Name: ANDREW COOK

Name of the GLOUCESTERSHIRE CONSTABULARY
organisation you

represent:

Position held: LICENSING MANAGER.

LICENSING DEPARTMENT

GLOUCESTERSHIRE CONSTABULARY
Postal Address of the HQ. 1 WATERWELLS,

organisation or body QUEDGELEY

you represent GLOUCESTER
Post Code: GL2 2AN
Daytime contact 01452 752816

telephone number:

Email address: If you would prefer to correspond via email, please enter your email address.

(optional) andrew.cook@gloucestershire.police. ul

Full correspondence
address if different to
above

Premises Details

Name of premises you are

making representation HOME BARGAINS
about:

Full Postal Address of | Unit 2, Golden Valley Retail Park, Cheltenham, Glos.

premises you are
making representation
about:

Application Ref. Number.
Post Code: GLET 83T (If known)




Page 32

Representation details.
(Note: Your representation must relate to one or more of the four Licensing objectives. Please indicate the objective(s) your
representation relates to.)

Please ;

Licensing Objective tick for hiease tickfor
Y Yes
es

The prevention of crime and Public safety
disorder v
The prevention of Public The protection of children from
nuisance harm v

Please provide details of your representation and any evidence you may have in support of it.
(Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary)

This application relates to a new Home Bargains store situated adjacent to B & Q at the newly, developed Golden
Valley Retail Park, Cheltenham. The Constabulary’s objection to the grant of an alcohol licence is made on the

grounds of:

e The protection of children from harm
e The prevention of crime and disorder

GROUNDS FOR OBJECTION

Alcohol is an age-restricted product with serious or even fatal consequences for any child or teenager who
consumes an excessive amount. In addition to the risks it poses for the youngsters who consume the alcohol, it
fuels anti-social behaviour and crime in the community. As with cigarettes, knives, and other age-restricted
products there is a fundamental need for this product to be controlled to a much higher degree than normal
everyday items, so that under-age children do not have easy access to alcohol.

Gloucestershire Trading Standards and the Constabulary have carried out a huge amount of work in Cheltenham
(especially Test Purchasing) over the past few years to try and reduce the accessibility of alcohol to children.
Despite making considerable progress, Cheltenham fares very badly as far as ‘protection of children from harm’is
concerned. Alcohol-specific hospital admissions for under 18’s in Cheltenham are "significantly worse than the
national average” (see Local Alcohol Profiles for England). Recent Test Purchase operations using 15-year old
children have also shown an unwelcome rise in the failure rate. In summary, there is still a huge amount of
progress to be made and there is no room for complacency in this area.

Store Layout & Crime Reduction Measures

Home Bargains intend to locate the main Alcohol display within sight of the main till, which is helpful. The
Constabulary has asked that any spirits (over 20% ABV) that are to be sold must either be tagged with a Security
Tag or, alternatively, displayed behind a counter where staff can control access. These two conditions are
regularly used throughout the County of Gloucestershire to combat theft of spirits (which are a favoured item for
shoplifters) and both have proven to be effective methods of reducing the problem.

There is actually a counter at the Lead Till, where cigarettes will be sold, however Home Bargains have declined a
condition “To display spirits only behind a counter” or “Not to sell spirits.”

In these circumstances, the Constabulary takes the view that a Security Officer should be employed to monitor
suspicious individuals, known troublemakers or previous offenders. However, Home Bargains have declined a
condition to employ a Security Guard — even for a limited period i.e. peak trading times/days. This, in effect, leaves
the alcohol vulnerable to theft, including theft by under-agers.

Drunken Customers

Alcohol is a product that also needs to be restricted when it is being sought by those who are already drunk.

If drunken customers are refused service by staff, they will sometimes be tempted to steal the product instead.
Even if staff see thefts occur, there will be no Security Guard at the store to deal with it, so the responsibility for
dealing with the problem would shift entirely to the Police who would have to try to identify, locate and arrest an
offender after they had left the store. This is usually a very lengthy and difficult process, compared with incidents
where an offender has been detained at the scene.




Page 33

Theft
e Theft is a major problem in British society, and is the most frequent crime linked to the retail sector.
e During 2011, there were 10,233 crimes in Cheltenham, of which 3,903 (38%) were Thefts of various
categories.
e Of these various Thefts 1,039 (26%) were Shoplifting. Additional categories of Theft that take place in
supermarkets include ‘Theft by employees’ and ‘Theft from the person’ (theft of purses from shopping
trolleys for example).

The Retail Sector, therefore, places enormous demands on the police. Each arrest consumes approximately
7 hours of a Police Officer's time, during which time they are unavailable for other demands for policing in the local
community.

Theft of Alcohol

Alcohol is one of the most-frequently-stolen items and it is often specifically targeted by thieves. Unfortunately,
stores and supermarkets often invite theft, by placing alcohol displays close to the entrances/exits. This is
regarded by the Constabulary as an irresponsible practice, as it not only tempts shoplifters to steal, but affords
shop-staff no realistic opportunity to intervene to prevent the theft of such items. For this reason, the Constabulary
is seeking a condition that alcohol shall not be displayed within 5 metres of the entrance/exit. Without such a
condition this store would be at liberty to place a freestanding display just inside the entrance.

Home Bargains have indicated that they would accept such a condition.

Crime Reduction Measures
There are many measures that Licence Holders can take to reduce their Crime & Disorder levels, thereby

reducing demand on the Constabulary and minimising impact on the local community:

e The use of Uniformed Security Staff as a Crime Prevention measure in stores is hard to overstate.
Their 'visible presence’ at a store entrance or overseeing Alcohol displays has a positive deterrent effect
for thieves. The role of Security Guards is particularly necessary in supermarket-style stores, where
shelving is so high that staff cannot easily monitor customers (as in a small shop or Off-Licence).
The presence of a Security Guard not only acts as a deterrent to criminals who are intent on stealing
goods, but also provides a degree of protection for staff and customers. Their presence, allied with good
observations, is the single most effective measure to combat shoplifing and general disorder.
Security Officers perform a specialised role and are the main point-of-contact and providers of good
quality evidence when involvement of the Police is necessary.

A Security Guard enables vulnerable products to be monitored, enables suspicious activity to be properly
observed and allows offenders to be detained when necessary. It also means that incidents of a minor
nature can be dealt with ‘in-house’, without constantly calling on the Police to assist. Most importantly, it
enables stores to enforce a Ban against previous offenders. The latter, if not implemented, permits repeat
offenders to return to the store time-after-time.

Home Bargains have indicated that they are relying on shop staff to prevent thefts; however it is the experience of
the Constabulary that, whilst the presence of shop staff can act as a deterrent, they are usually busy with other
duties, so will not be observing the alcohol display or suspicious customers. Moreover stores generally direct staff
not to get involved in dealing with crime and disorder issues, due to risks involved e.g. assault. The Constabulary
has requested sight of the company’s policy on staff directives, but has not yet seen it.

In essence, the presence of a Security Officer has a direct bearing on the level of Crime & Disorder and on the
demands being made on the Police, and they are the single most important crime-reduction measure.

e ‘Tagging’ of Alcohol causes an alarm to sound if an individual attempts to leave the store with Alcohol
without first having the Tag removed/de-activated at the Checkout. This is an effective measure that
helps to reduce Theft by making it more difficult for goods to be stolen unnoticed although, for practicality,
tagging is often confined to Spirits (where large highly-visibility tags are used) or the more valuable bottles
of alcohol.

Home Bargains are not wishing to implement a Tagging system to protect their products.

During discussions, Home Bargains made a comparison with their existing store within Gloucestershire (which is
based at Merrywalks, Stroud) and pointed out that it does not suffer significant crime & disorder problems.
However, that store is situated within a Shopping Mall that benefits from the constant presence of a Security
Officer on every day of the week. Without that Security presence the store would undoubtedly experience higher
levels of crime & disorder, as the Security Officers intercept and observe known troublemakers and thieves.

3




Page 34

This strategy gives a high degree of protection to all the stores within the Mall; as one also sees at other Malls
such as the Regent's Arcade, the Beechwood Shopping Centre and the Brewery, where crime & disorder in
individual units is low.

The Mall in Stroud also benefits from participation in a local ‘Shopwatch’ which alerts the Security Officers to
undesirables and links directly to the Police Camera Room.

| have undertaken research regarding the Merrywalks Mall and can say that 108 incidents are recorded for the
period 1/1/12 — 4/3/13.

Home Bargains have also indicated that they are relying on their CCTV system to combat crime. Whilst CCTV
systems act as a deterrent to some extent, they are of limited value as they simply record crimes that take place.
It does not stop them occurring. Home Bargains have indicated that, when a crime occurs, they would supply
CCTV footage of the crime to the Police. This places the onus and workload on the Constabulary to investigate a
crime after the offender has gone; a crime that is often preventable if adequate security and crime prevention
measures are in place in the first instance.

Supermarkets and discount stores compound Crime & Disorder problems in our communities by engaging in a
‘price war' over the sale of Alcohol. Alcohol is often discounted to very low levels and is aggressively marketed,
hence the Government currently considering Minimum Pricing. The promotion of Alcohol in this manner is not
without it's consequences in the community.

The sale of alcohol is a significant part of the core business for Home Bargains, and this discount store is situated
very close to ASDA where alcohol is sold at low prices. Home Bargains is likely to compete with them on price.
ASDA accepted a condition on their licence for a Security Guard between 1100hrs and closing time, even though
they also have Tagging and CCTV. As a result, ASDA has low crime & disorder and makes very few demands on
the Constabulary’s resources.

CONCLUSION

It should be noted that the Licensing Act Objectives quite rightly place an emphasis on the PREVENTION
of crime and disorder. Without appropriate Conditions, the Grant of this Application is likely, in the view of
the Constabulary, to lead to unnecessarily high crime & disorder, and a higher risk of harm to children.

Home Bargains have declined to accept a condition that they will employ a Security Guard if the number
of crimes exceeds four per month. They have also declined to give an Undertaking for a Security Guard
for the first 3 or 6 months of trading whilst an assessment is made of the long-term need or otherwise.

Aside from reported crime, a Security Guard would also help the store reduce stock losses, so is partially
self-funding.

This application is, therefore, opposed by the Constabulary on the grounds related above.

Please suggest suitable conditions that the committee could add to the licence (if granted) to
remedy your concerns or if agreed in advance of a hearing by the applicant would allow you to
withdraw your representation or enter details of any other matters, not commented on elsewhere
relating to your representation that you would like the committee to take into account.

Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary.)




Page 35

In the event that the Committee grants this Licence, the Constabulary seeks the Conditions below:

1.

2.

OR

7.

The Challenge 25 scheme shall be adopted.

The premises shall operate a system of till prompts to assist colleagues determining the age of
customers purchasing age-restricted products.

Alcohol shall only be displayed in direct line-of-sight of the main till.

Unless behind a sales counter, alcohol shall not be displayed within 5 metres of the main
entrancelexit.

A CCTV system consisting of at least 4 cameras shall be installed at the premises. At least 1
camera shall cover the alcohol display and at least 1 camera shall cover the main entrance to the
premises. The CCTV system shall be maintained in good working order, shall record at all times
the premises are open, and recordings shall be kept for a minimum of 14 days and be provided on
DVD to Officers of the Council, Trading Standards or Police on request.

Spirits shall only be displayed behind the counter (or shall not be sold). (For the purpose of this
condition Spirits shall be defined as being an alcoholic product with an alcohol by volume (ABV)
percentage in excess of 20%)

Security Tags shall be fitted to all spirits over 500ml.

A Security Guard shall be employed at the premises for a minimum of 20 hours per week.

The Committee is respectfully reminded that, under Section 17 of the Crime & Disorder Act, “it shall be the duty of
each authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions
on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area”.

Signed: | 4. 5. Cook, Dated: | 19" March 2013

Position: | Licensing Manager.




Page 36

OBIJECTION

| refer to the above application and write to advise you that, unfortunately, we have not yet been able to reach
agreement with the applicants (solicitors) regarding conditions that should be applied to this licence.

As a result, the Constabulary objects to the grant of the Licence on the grounds of:
e  The Prevention of Crime and Disorder.
e  The Protection of Children from Harm.

The essence of Police concern is as follows:
e  Alcohol will be openly displayed in a supermarket-style fashion.
e  There will be no Tagging system to either deter theft or alert staff to any attempt thefts.
e  The applicant is not happy to accept a condition for a single Security Guard at the store.
e  We have not yet been able to reach agreement regarding the storage of spirits.

The Constabulary anticipates that shoplifting offences are extremely likely to occur in a store of this size.
Without any Security Guard presence the store will have no capacity to:

o deterthefts

e intervene to prevent or stop thefts

e participate in a shopwatch scheme or prevent banned/undesirable individuals entering

e deal with crimes and incidents when they occur.

e protect staff

The burden of dealing with all such incidents will, therefore, fall to the Constabulary which has decreasing
resources. Any such incidents will mean that police resources are distracted from existing duties elsewhere.

Stolen alcohol may end up in the hands of under 18's, placing them at higher risk and placing the local community
at higher risk of Anti-Social Behaviour.

The other nearby stores B & Q and ASDA both employ Security Officers (the latter by Condition on the Licence),
and this new store is likely to be perceived as a 'soft target' if there is no security.

The responsibility for ensuring the PREVENTION of crime and the PREVENTION of children from harm rests with
the applicant and not with the Constabulary.

The Committee will be aware that Cheltenham has a higher number of admissions of under-18's to Hospital than
the national average, despite a great deal of work being carried out by both the Constabulary and Trading

Standards over several years. Nothing should be permitted to undermine the progress that has been made.

Prior to the Hearing | shall supply crime and incident statistics regarding similar stores that operate across the
county of Gloucestershire, and from Home Bargains stores in other areas.

Obviously we shall continue to work towards reaching agreement.
Kind Regards,

Andy

Andy Cook

Force Licensing Manager

Licensing Unit
Gloucestershire Constabulary



WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN[ | | |

Statement of: Timothy lan HUTCHINSON
Age if under 18: over 18 (if over 18 insert ‘over 18) Occupation: A/lnspector 255

This statement (consisting of 1 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and |
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it anything
which | know to be false, o?do not believe to be true.

P
-

Signature: 7 — M___— (witness) Date:19" March 2013

| am an Acting Inspector with Gloucestershire Police, based at Cheltenham Police Station. My area of
responsibility covers Cheltenham Town Centre and the southern part of Cheltenham Borough, which includes
the Golden Valley Retail Park.

| am aware that a company by the name of Home Bargains is establishing a store at Unit 2, Golden Valley
Retail Park, Hatherley Lane, Cheltenham and that it has applied for a licence to sell alcohol for consumption
off the premises. | am advised that Home Bargains do not propose to employ security staff and are reluctant
to agree to conditions regarding the placement of alcohol within the store.

| have serious concerns about this new business, in the event that they do not employ security staff or agree
to proposed conditions.

Crime & Disorder: retail premises of this nature inevitably attract crime, with theft of alcohol featuring in over
12% of thefts by shoplifting that have occurred across the Cheltenham Local Policing Area during the current
financial year. It would therefore seem prudent to take steps to prevent thefts and specifically theft of alcohol,
which tends to be of higher value.

Protection of Children from Harm: the premises will serve a large residential area, which has historically seen
significant youth related anti-social behaviour (ASB), where the underage consumption of alcohol was
frequently a factor. The local policing team, working in partnership with other agencies and local retailers, has
worked hard to reduce this ASB and limit the availability of alcohol to underage persons. Without strict controls
on the placement of alcohol within this new store and in the absence of security staff and other measures, this

work is in danger of being undermined.

To minimise the risks of crime and disorder, and to protect children from harm, the following conditions are

necessary:
. The premises will operate Challenge 25 proof of age scheme.
. The premises will operate a system of till prompts to assist colleagues determining the age of
customers purchasing age-restricted products.
. Alcohol will not be displayed within 5 metres of any entrance/exit in regular use by customers.
. Security Tags will be fitted to all spirits over 500ml.
. One security guard will be employed at the premises to cover peak times, 20-30hrs per week.

The proposed conditions are proportionate and consistent with those applied to the nearby ASDA superstore.
There, the presence of a security guard has proven effective in keeping crime and disorder levels low, whilst
the other conditions have shown ASDA to be a responsible local retailer and have avoided a re-emergence of

alcohol related youth disorder.

Signature /’?"i—— [A,H- Signature Witnessed By

Page Number [ 1] of Pages

Ol N RESTRICTED (when complete) ' HEE E N




Page 38



	Agenda
	4 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE
	Appendix A - application
	Appendix B - internal plan
	Appendix C - location map
	Appendix D - police rep


